## WONEWOC-UNION CENTER SCHOOL DISTRICT EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 2014-2015



# WONEWOC-UNION CENTER SCHOOL DISTRICT VISION STATEMENT

America needs young people who know how to learn, as well as how to read, write, speak and compute. America needs young people with strong interpersonal skills, the ability to contribute to economic productivity and social progress and justice. America needs young people who can acquire, analyze, and apply information so as to think creatively, and solve problems. As workers, parents, citizens, and individuals, members of the next generation should know how to question, invent, anticipate and dream. We of the Wonewoc-Center School Community should work every day to help young people do these things, so that they can move, at last, beyond us, each prepared to make a living, make a life, and make a difference.

## **Contents**

GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT	1
THE ROLE OF MANAGEMENT	1
LIABILITY INSURANCE	2
MILEAGE	2
TRAINING	2
LICENSE	2
PAYROLL & DEDUCTIONS	3
WAGES	3
EXTRA CURRICULAR AND ADVISOR PAY: See Appendix A	3
PHYSICAL EXAMINATION AND SKIN TUBERCULIN TEST	3
FMLA	4
LEAVES- FAMILY, MEDICAL & MILITARY	4
LEAVES- JURY DUTY	5
BENEFITS- HEALTH INSURANCE & COBRA	5
BENEFITS- OTHER INSURANCES	6
WORKERS' COMPENSATION	6
TAX SHELTERED ANNUITY (TSA)	6
CAFETERIA PLAN/FLEXIBLE SPENDING PLAN	7
WISCONSIN RETIRMENT SYSTEM	7
CALENDARS	7
SUMMER SCHOOL	7
ELECTRONIC MEDIA & SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY	8
POLITICAL ACTIVITIES	9
SOLICITATION (Non-Political)	10
DISCIPLINE	11
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	15
JOB TRANSFERS & PROMOTIONS	18
IOR VACANCIES & POSTING	10

LAYOFF & RECA	L	19
PERFORMANCE	REVIEWS/ EVALUATION	19
PERSONNEL FILE		19
PERSONNEL - ST	UDENT RELATIONS	20
SEPARATION FR	OM EMPLOYMENT	20
WORKPLACE PR	OTECTIONS AND WORKPLACE SAFETY	20
FIREARMS		24
DRUG AND ALCO	DHOL PROHIBITIONS	24
CERTIFIED INSTR	RUCTIONAL STAFF	29
SECTION 1.	WORK DAY	29
SECTION 2.	LEAVE	29
SECTION 3.	VOLUNTARY EARLY RETIREMENT	30
SECTION 4.	COLLEGE CREDIT REIMBURSEMENT	30
SECTION 5.	EXTRA PAY	31
SECTION 6.	RESIGNATION	31
SUPPORT STAFF		33
SECTION 1.	WORK DAY HOURS	33
SECTION 2.	SUMMER HELP	34
SECTION 3.	SCHOOL CANCELLATIONS	34
SECTION 4.	LEAVE	35
SECTION 5.	HOLIDAYS	36
SECTION 6.	VACATION	36
SECTION 7.	VOLUNTARY EARLY RETIREMENT	37
APPENDIX A		38
SAMPLE FORMS		40
2012-2013 EMP	LOYEE HANDBOOK SIGNATURE PAGE	Error! Bookmark not defined.

#### **GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT**

It is the policy of Wonewoc-Union Center School District to provide equal opportunity in employment to all qualified employees and applicants for employment. Positive action is required from all employees to help ensure that Wonewoc-Union Center School District complies with its obligations under state and federal law.

This Handbook is not a contract of employment; the Handbook supersedes all prior personnel policies and procedures, whether written or established by past practice. Because this Employee Handbook is based on District operational policies and procedures, federal and state mandated policies and procedures, and present employee fringe benefit programs which are all to some degree subject to change, this Handbook is also subject to change. In the event that any provision in this Employee Handbook conflicts with any applicable collective bargaining agreement provision, the collective bargaining agreement shall control. The District reserves the right to revise, add, subtract, correct, delete or update any part of the provisions in this Handbook.

Please note that the Board is currently updating its policies and, in the interim, this Handbook shall supersede existing policies to the extent that the policies and Handbook specifically conflict on an issue.

The Board will apprise employees of any changes it makes to handbook provisions in a variety of ways, which may include calling employee meetings, posting notification the changes to the staff bulletin board or electronic version, or emailing employee alerts.

#### THE ROLE OF MANAGEMENT

Certain rights and responsibilities are imposed by state and federal laws and regulations. Many of these rights and responsibilities have implications for policies and procedures governing employment. For this reason, the District reserves any and all management rights regarding employees' employment status.

General Guidelines: The role of management includes, but is not limited to, the right to:

- A. Manage and direct the employees;
- B. Hire, promote, schedule, transfer and assign employees;
- C. Lay-off and recall employees;
- D. Discharge employees or take disciplinary action;
- E. Schedule overtime as required;
- F. Develop job descriptions;
- G. Assign work duties;
- H. Introduce new or improved methods or facilities or change existing methods or facilities:
- I. Contract out for goods and services;
- J. Discontinue certain operations;
- K. Direct all operations of the Wonewoc-Union Center School District;

- L. To take whatever action is necessary to comply with state and federal law;
- M. To take whatever action is necessary in situations of emergency.

#### LIABILITY INSURANCE

The School Board shall carry liability insurance which provides coverage for the acts of employees performed in accordance with their duties and within their scope of employment. Employees shall be covered for liability in accordance with the terms of the District's liability insurance policy. Employees may inspect the District's liability insurance policy upon request.

#### **MILEAGE**

The board prefers that, whenever possible, employees use district-owned vehicles for employment-required travel. The signup is in the district office. If circumstances require an employee to use his or her personal vehicles for school purposes, the district will reimburse the employee for such use at the prevailing IRS allowable mileage rate. Mileage reimbursement must be pre-approved by the Superintendent.

#### **TRAINING**

If required by the Employer, the Employer will provide appropriate equipment, uniforms and supplies. The District shall pay expenses and mileage for off-site, out-of-town training that is required and approved by the Employer.

#### **LICENSE**

The Employer shall pay the cost of initial DPI certification for special education aides (#883 license) if they have not been licensed in the past and where such certification is required by the Employer for the job assigned to the employee.

Each employee who is required to be licensed or certified by law must provide the District with a copy of the current license or certificate to be maintained in his or her personnel file. Personnel files can be found in the District Office. Employees are expected to know the expiration date of their license/certification and meet the requirements for re-licensure or certification in a timely manner. A teaching contract with any person not legally authorized to teach the named subject or at the named school shall be void. A teaching contract shall terminate if, and when, the authority to teach terminates.

#### **PAYROLL & DEDUCTIONS**

Payroll will be distributed by direct deposit.

<u>Pay Periods</u>: Paychecks will be deposited by direct deposit on the 15th and the last day of the month. Should the 15<sup>th</sup> or the last day of the month fall on a weekend, the paychecks will be deposited on the preceding Friday, if possible.

<u>Data Changes</u>: Please notify the Business Manager if any changes occur to your name, home address, telephone number(s), marital status, name or number of dependents, number of tax exemptions, insurance classification, beneficiary changes, or individuals to be contacted in case of emergency. This information is necessary as it may affect your compensation, dependents' eligibility for medical insurance, and other important matters.

<u>Deductions</u>: It is the District's policy to comply with applicable wage and hour laws and regulations. If you have any questions or concerns about your salaried status or you believe that any deduction has been made from your pay that is inconsistent with your salaried status, you should immediately raise the matter with the Business Manager who can assist you in understanding the information that is required in order to investigate the matter.

The District is committed to investigating and resolving all complaints as promptly, but also as accurately, as possible. Consistent with the U.S. Department of Labor's policy, any complaint will be resolved within a reasonable time given all the facts and circumstances. If an investigation reveals that you were subjected to an improper deduction from pay, you will be reimbursed; and the Employer will take whatever action it deems necessary to ensure compliance with the salary basis test in the future.

#### **WAGES**

The District will comply with state statutes as to employee compensation.

The Board may consider awarding its employees premium pay, merit pay, automatic pay progressions and any other form of supplemental compensation, but state law prohibits the Board from bargaining over anything other than an increase to total base wages for its unionized employees.

## EXTRA CURRICULAR AND ADVISOR PAY: See Appendix A

#### PHYSICAL EXAMINATION AND SKIN TUBERCULIN TEST

If required by the school district, the cost of the physical examination shall be paid by the school district. The provider will be selected by the District.

All new staff hires will have to meet all new staff requirements, including but not limited to, a physical examination (including a tuberculin test or chest x-ray), and a criminal background check.

#### **FMLA**

Under Federal FMLA, employees may be required to use all accrued paid leave time before receiving leave without pay; under State FMLA, employee may substitute accrued paid leave time or choose to take unpaid leave.

Notification of Benefits and Leave Rights: Since the District has an employee handbook or other written policy concerning employee benefits or leave rights, information concerning FMLA entitlements and employee obligations under the FMLA is included in the *Handbook* as required by federal law. The District shall post the text of the notice contained in the following link in a conspicuous place where notices to employees and applicants are customarily placed: <a href="http://www.dol.gov/whd/fmla/finalrule/FMLAPoster.pdf">http://www.dol.gov/whd/fmla/finalrule/FMLAPoster.pdf</a>. See 29 U.S.C. § 2619(a); 29 C.F.R. § 825.300(a)(1). The notice is posted in the lounge.

<u>Eligibility Notice</u>. When an employee requests FMLA leave, or when the employer acquires knowledge that an employee's leave may be for an FMLA-qualifying reason, the employer must notify the employee of the employee's eligibility to take FMLA leave within five business days, absent extenuating circumstances. 29 C.F.R. § 825.300(b).

Rights and Responsibilities Notice. The District shall provide written notice outlining specific obligations of the employee and explaining any consequences of not meeting those requirements. 29 C.F.R. § 825.300(c). The District is satisfying this notice requirement by directing the employee to the following website, which combines the eligibility notice and the rights & responsibilities notice into a single form: U.S. DEP'T OF LABOR, *Notice of Eligibility and Rights & Responsibilities (FMLA)*, available at <a href="http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/posters/fmlaen.pdf">http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/posters/fmlaen.pdf</a>.

<u>Designation Notice</u>. The District shall "inform employees in writing whether requested under the FMLA has been determined to be covered under the FMLA." U.S. DEP'T OF LABOR, *Designation Notice (Family and Medical Leave Act)*, *available at* <a href="http://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/WH-382.pdf">http://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/WH-382.pdf</a>. See 29 C.F.R. § 825.300(d).

#### LEAVES- FAMILY, MEDICAL & MILITARY

The district shall grant family, medical and military leaves to qualified employees in accordance with the Wisconsin Family and Medical Leave Law and the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act.

Eligible employees may qualify for unpaid leave under Wisconsin's Family and Medical Leave statute (§103.10, Wis. Stats.) and/or the federal Family and Medical Leave Act. When applicable, the leaves shall run concurrently. Employee rights posters for both laws are in the workplace for reference by all employees. For more information on benefits contact the Business Office/Human Resource Department.

### **LEAVES- JURY DUTY**

Employees who receive a summons to serve on jury duty will be granted jury duty leave when a copy of the summons is delivered to the Business Office.

General Guidelines: Employees must give reasonable advance notice of their intended absence for jury duty. If an employee is dismissed from jury duty on any given day prior to the end of his/her regularly scheduled working hours, he/she shall report to work for the balance of the working day.

The School District will continue to pay the regular salary for any full-time employee while he/she serves on jury duty provided the employee endorses all jury duty pay (other than mileage reimbursement) to the district.

#### **BENEFITS- HEALTH INSURANCE & COBRA**

#### Coverage:

Levels of benefits provided and employee participation is determined by the Wonewoc-Union Center School District and applicable state and federal regulations. Employees who are employed more than 30 hours are eligible for coverage if an employee is regularly scheduled for less than 40 hours per week, the district's contribution to the health insurance premium costs will be prorated, consistent with the employee's percentage of employment. The District retains the right to determine insurance carriers, plan design, premium contributions and coverage levels and the right to make changes to all aspects of the insurance benefits it provides to its employees at any time.

#### **Employee Contribution:**

Eligible employees will contribute no less than 12.6% percent of the premium cost of the plan.

#### Cash-Option/In Lieu Of:

If the employee chooses not to participate in the district's health and dental insurance coverage (you must opt out of BOTH), there will be cash in lieu payment determined by the Board of Education.

#### **Insurance Continuation:**

Under state law and the Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 ("COBRA") and subsequent amendments to the Act, employees covered under an employer's group health care plan are eligible for continuation of health care coverage under the group plan upon the employee's termination (except for gross misconduct) or reduction in hours.

COBRA regulations also allow the employee's spouse and covered dependents to elect continuation coverage upon the employee's death, divorce or legal separation, an employee's entitlement to Medicare, a dependent's loss of dependent status under family coverage, or the employer's filing of a bankruptcy proceeding.

All employees, as well as their qualified dependents, will receive notice of mandated insurance continuation benefits at the time of hire or whenever the plan coverage for the employee begins. If a qualifying event occurs which entitles the employee and/or qualified dependents to continuation coverage, the plan administrator will notify the qualified beneficiaries of their right to elect continuation coverage. Unless otherwise agreed, continued participation is solely at the participant's expense.

For additional details regarding coverage and premium contributions, contact the Business Manager.

#### **BENEFITS- OTHER INSURANCES**

#### **Dental Coverage**:

Levels of benefits provided and employee participation is determined by the Wonewoc-Union Center School District and applicable state and federal regulations. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work more than 30 hours per week are eligible for coverage. If an employee is regularly scheduled to work less than 40 hours per week, the district's health insurance premium contribution will be prorated, consistent with the employee's percentage of employment. The District retains the right to change insurance carriers and to determine plan design and coverage levels.

#### **Employee Contribution:**

The employee is responsible for no less than 12.6% of the coverage.

#### **WORKERS' COMPENSATION**

The District will provide Workers' Compensation as required by law. Any employee who is injured on the job must complete the employee's work injury report prior to seeking medical attention if at all possible. This completed report should be given to the Business Manager or Human Resource Department within 24 hours of your work-related injury.

#### **INCIDENTS, ACCIDENTS AND INJURIES**

Any employee involved in an incident, accident or injury, including property-damage only accidents or incidents, irrespective of fault, during working hours or while using any District-owned machinery, vehicle or other property, shall report the incident, accident or injury to the District Office within 24 hours (excluding weekends and holidays) of the occurrence of the incident, accident or injury.

## **TAX SHELTERED ANNUITY (TSA)**

A TSA program will be available to employees in accordance with the District's policies governing the 403(b) program. See the Human Resource Department for packets of information.

## CAFETERIA PLAN/FLEXIBLE SPENDING PLAN

The District will provide an Internal Revenue Service authorized cafeteria plan/flexible spending account (FSA) under applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code (§105, §106, §125, §129) to permit employees to reduce their salary and contribute to an FSA to cover the following expenses:

- Payment of insurance premium amounts (IRC§106);
- An employee may designate, under the flexible reimbursement plan/cafeteria plan, an annual dollar amount for permitted medical and dental expenses not covered by the insurance plan. The amount is subject to the limitations set forth In the Internal Revenue Code (IRC§105, §125).
- An employee may designate, under the flexible reimbursement plan/cafeteria plan, an annual dollar amount for permitted dependent care costs. The amount is subject to the limitations set forth In the Internal Revenue Code (IRC§129).

#### WISCONSIN RETIRMENT SYSTEM

The District will comply with the requirements established by state statute and the Department of Employee Trust Funds for contributions to the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS). The Board shall contribute the employer's share. The employee shall pay the employee's required WRS contribution on a pre-tax basis.

#### **CALENDARS**

The school calendar shall be determined by the Board. The calendar shall consist of 180 face-to-face days and 10 in-service/holidays, for a total of 190 days. The determination of the structure of the days, e.g. instructional, in-service, workdays, etc. shall be at the discretion of the Board.

#### SUMMER SCHOOL

Summer School will be determined by the Board of Education.

#### **ELECTRONIC MEDIA & SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY**

It is the policy of the District that information, in all its forms, written, spoken, recorded electronically, or printed, will be protected from accidental or intentional unauthorized modification, destruction, or disclosure. All electronic media must be protected from misuse, unauthorized manipulation, and destruction. It is further the policy of the District that employees may not use social media technology to engage in or post communications or material that would violate any Handbook policy, including, but not limited to, using technology to post communications or materials that are derogatory or offensive with respect to race, religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, age, or any other legally protected class status.

#### General Guidelines- Electronic Media:

- 1. All employer-provided electronic media systems are the employer's property. Additionally, all messages and files composed, sent or received on these systems are and remain the property of the District. They are not the private property of any employee.
- 2. Use of the district's electronic media systems is reserved solely for the conduct of business, during work hours. However, if employees wish to use these systems during breaks, lunch periods, or before and after regular working hours, they may do so, but employees are specifically prohibited from using these services for any illegal, illicit, immoral or offensive purposes.
- 3. The electronic media systems may not be used to solicit or proselytize for commercial ventures, religious or political causes, outside organizations or other non-job-related solicitations.
- 4. The electronic media systems are not to be used to create any offensive or disruptive messages or documents.
- 5. The electronic media systems may not be used to upload, download, send, copy or use copyrighted materials, trade secrets, proprietary financial information or similar materials without prior authorization. If an employee believes that he or she has received or inadvertently downloaded any such materials without authorization, he or she should immediately notify his or her supervisor. Failure to follow this directive may lead to discipline up to and including discharge.
- 6. The District reserves and intends to exercise the right to review, audit, intercept, access and disclose all internet activity and any messages or documents created, received or sent over the employer's electronic media systems for any purpose, and employees should have no expectation of privacy in regard to their use of the district's electronic media or equipment including email.
- 7. The confidentiality of any message cannot be assumed. Even when a message is erased, it is still possible to retrieve and read that message. Further, the use of passwords for security does not guarantee confidentiality. Consequently, the district strongly encourages employees to refrain from sending any pupil record information using email or other electronic media. All passwords must be disclosed to management or they are invalid and cannot be used.
- 8. Employees may not modify, delete, or destroy any District document created by any electronic media unless specifically authorized to do so.

#### General Guidelines- Social Media:

- 1. Only on Your Own Time. Unless you have received advance permission from your supervisor or unless such activity is directly related to the performance of your job, you may not engage in social media activity on work time.
- 2. Post as Yourself. Make clear that you are expressing your personal views alone, not those of your employer.
- 3. Be Respectful and Nice. Do not post communications or material that is disparaging, obscene, profane, vulgar, bullying, threatening, or inappropriately inflammatory.
- 4. Use Good Judgment. What you say online is accessible to the public; use good judgment in your communications.
- 5. Obey the Law. Do not post any material that violates the law, such as material that is obscene, profane, defamatory, threatening, harassing, or that violates the privacy rights of someone else. The posting of such material may subject you to criminal and civil liability.
- 6. Don't Expect Privacy. Because your social media communications are publicly available, you should not expect that your communications are private in any way. Once you post something online, it is completely out of your control and generally available to anyone in the world.
- 7. Ask for Guidance. If you have any questions about what is appropriate to include in social media communications, ask your manager.
- 8. Comply with Harassment and Other Policies. Team members may not use social media technology to engage in or post communications or material that would violate any other Handbook policy, including, but not limited to, the Workplace Safety, Discrimination, and Harassment and Retaliation policies.
- 9. Keep Secrets. You must not disclose confidential information.

<u>Duty to Report</u>: All employees have a duty to report any discovered or suspected unauthorized or improper usage of electronic media or social media with impact on the workplace.

<u>Policy Violations</u>: Employees who violate this policy may be subject to discipline, up to and including, immediate termination of employment.

#### **POLITICAL ACTIVITIES**

Employees are free to engage in political activity outside of work hours and to the extent that it does not adversely affect the performance of job duties, working relationships or Wonewoc-Union Center School District operations. When engaging in political activity or engaging in discussion of issues of public importance, employees are expected to ensure that their actions and positions are not attributed to the District. District resources may not be used for promoting a particular candidate or political party or for advocating a particular position on an issue that has become identified as the viewpoint of a particular candidate or party.

Definition of "Employer Resources": Employees may not use District resources for political activities. District resources include office supplies, electronic equipment including e-mail, facsimile and photocopying machines, bulletin boards and other public spaces. (Use of bulletin boards requires authorization of Administration and is off-limits to public use.)

Definition of "Political" Activities: "Political" activities include partisan and non-partisan elections and referendums. All "political" activities must be conducted independent of your role as an employee. The following guidelines are not exhaustive, but are intended to help in differentiating between those activities that may be viewed as harmful to workplace functioning and those activities that generally fall outside the "political" activities subject to employer restrictions and intervention. Employees are expected to avoid the following political activities:

- Using working hours or employer resources to solicit money or signatures or to make political contributions;
- Using non-work hours to solicit contributions, signatures or services from other employees who are on work time;
- Posting political materials in areas open to the public (generally, individual work stations that are not available to the public are exempted from this restriction);
- Using the employer's mailing address as the return address for political solicitations;
- Providing employer mailing lists to any individual or organization for political solicitations if this information is not generally available to the public. The use and distribution of employer mailing lists to outside parties always requires prior authorization including an assessment of whether fees should be charged to cover production costs;
- Providing a forum for an individual candidate to promote his or her campaign without prior administrative authorization and without giving an equal opportunity to other candidates, for the same office, to participate in the forum;
- Political advocacy in the form of clothing items, armbands and buttons that cause a disruption in operations and/or violate the rights of others including the right to be free from discrimination, harassment and intimidation in the workplace.

These guidelines are not intended to discourage discussion of controversial issues in the classroom, where such discussions are consistent with District curriculum guidelines and teaching methods.

This policy is not intended to limit the off-duty activities of employees where District buildings and property are made available to community groups for meetings and gatherings.

Nothing in this policy limits the rights of the District to sponsor non-partisan political forums or forums in support of District initiatives, such as building referendums. Nothing in this policy places restrictions on the District's freedom to invite speakers with political associations to forums that are not open to the general public.

## **SOLICITATION (Non-Political)**

In order to help maintain a work environment that protects employees from undue interference while performing their jobs, employees may not orally solicit or distribute written materials for any organization, fund, activity or cause to other employees in work areas while either employee is on working time.

<u>Employees On-duty</u>: Employees may solicit other employees or distribute written materials before or after the normal workday, during normal break or lunch times or any other time when they are not working. These solicitations and literature distribution efforts are not permitted in working areas.

<u>Employees Off-duty</u>: Off-duty employees may not solicit or distribute literature on Wonewoc-Union Center School District premises at any time.

<u>Non-employees</u>: May not solicit or distribute written materials on behalf of any organization, fund, activity or cause. Solicitations for charitable organizations are exempt as long as the organization is sponsored by an employee and prior permission has been secured from management. The same restrictions regarding working time and working areas apply to non-employees.

#### ATTENDANCE

The District expects employees to make every effort to be present for work. Employees are expected to adhere to their assigned schedule. In order for the schools to operate effectively, employees are expected to perform all assigned duties and work all scheduled hours during each designated workday, unless the employee has received approved leave. Breaks and meal periods may only be taken during times designated by the employee's supervisor/building administrator and as further specified in other parts of this *Employee Handbook*. Any deviation from assigned hours must have prior approval from the employee's supervisor/building administrator.

Employees who are unable to report to work shall follow the applicable procedures for reporting his/her absence. Any time spent not working during an employee's scheduled day must be accounted for using the appropriate reasons as defined in the *Leaves* section of this Employee Handbook. The District will monitor attendance and absence patterns. Theft of time and/or improper modification of time worked records will be investigated and will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. Failure to notify the District of an absence and failure to report to work or to report on time on such day could result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. Failure to return to work the day following the expiration of an authorized leave of absence may result in termination of employment.

#### CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

A. Wisconsin law requires all employees of Wisconsin public school districts to report suspected child abuse and neglect. In addition, school boards are to ensure all employees receive training provided by the Department of Public Instruction within six months of initial hiring and at least every five years thereafter.

B. A person required to report shall immediately inform, by telephone or personally, the applicable District administrative personnel and the county department of the facts and circumstances contributing to a suspicion of child abuse or neglect or of unborn child abuse or to a belief that abuse or neglect will occur.

#### **COPYRIGHT**

A variety of machines and equipment for reproducing materials to assist staff in carrying out their educational assignments are available to staff in both the school and home setting.

Infringement on copyrighted material, whether prose, poetry, graphic images, music audiotapes, video or computer-programmed materials, is a serious offense against federal law, a violation of Board policy and contrary to ethical standards required of staff. All reproduction of copyrighted material shall be conducted strictly in accordance with applicable provisions of law. Unless otherwise allowed as "fair use" under federal law, permission must be acquired from the copyright owner prior to reproduction of material in any form. Employees are further advised that copyright provisions apply to all forms of digital media. Questions regarding copyright shall be directed to the District Administrator.

#### CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS

All District employees are subject to criminal background checks and any new employees will be subject to criminal background checks.

#### FALSE REPORTS

Employees may be disciplined for filing false reports or statements including but not limited to the following: accident reports, attendance reports, insurance reports, physician's statements, preemployment statements, sick leave requests, student records, tax withholding forms and work reports.

#### **INVESTIGATIONS**

- A. Expectation of Cooperation: In the event of a District investigation or inquiry, every District employee has an affirmative duty to provide to his/her supervisor(s) or any other District official assigned to investigate all relevant and factual information about matters inquired except as provided for below in paragraph "B". Employees failing to volunteer such information shall receive a directive from an administrator to provide a statement. The employee's failure to comply with the directive may constitute "insubordination," a violation that may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.
- B. <u>Investigation interplay with potential criminal conduct</u>: If the alleged misconduct may

constitute criminal conduct by the employee, the employee may be provided a *Garrity* warning. *Garrity v. New Jersey*, 385 U.S. 493 (1967).

C. <u>Administrative Leave</u>: The District may place an employee on paid administrative leave during an investigation into alleged misconduct by the employee.

#### LICENSURE/CERTIFICATION

Each employee who is required to be licensed or certified by law must provide the District with a copy of the current license or certificate to be maintained in his or her personnel file. Personnel files can be found in the School District Office. Employees are expected to know the expiration date of their license/certification and meet the requirements for re-licensure or certification in a timely manner. A teaching contract with any person not legally authorized to teach the named subject or at the named school shall be void. All teaching contracts shall terminate if, and when, the authority to teach terminates.

#### PERSONAL PROPERTY

<u>Liability:</u> The District does not assume any responsibility for loss, theft or damages to personal property. In order to minimize risk, the District advises employees not to carry unnecessary amounts of cash or other valuables. If employees bring personal items to work, they are expected to exercise reasonable care to safeguard them. The District is not liable for vandalism, theft or any damage to cars parked on school property. This includes any potential damage occurring during a police search of district buildings and grounds. The District carries no accident insurance or other insurance coverage for any loss or injury for which the District does not have legal responsibility.

<u>Search of Personal Effects</u>: Employees should have no expectation of privacy to items contained in plain view, for example, but not limited by enumeration to automobiles parked on the District's property, items left on top of or within desks and cabinets, lockers, etc. Items not in plain view and contained within personal property, e.g. purse, satchel, wallet, coat, backpack, etc., may be searched in accordance with applicable state and federal law.

#### DISCIPLINE

Disciplinary action against employees may be taken for violations of standards of conduct, violations of policies and procedures, or for unsatisfactory work performance. Disciplinary action will typically be taken after an investigation and after giving the employee an opportunity to respond to any and all allegations.

<u>Level of Discipline</u>: The level of discipline imposed will take into consideration the seriousness of the infraction as well as the employee's performance record. When appropriate, discipline should be corrective in nature. At the employer's sole discretion, various types of employee discipline may be imposed which include, but are not limited to, the following: a suspension [unpaid or paid], or a written reprimand. None of these disciplinary measures are required to be used before discharge from employment occurs nor are the listed disciplinary actions required to be used in any specific order. The Employer may repeat disciplinary action.

Employees are expected to work in a competent and conscientious manner, which reflects favorably upon the employee and the Wonewoc-Union Center School District. The following is a list of examples of behavior, which would normally justify disciplinary action.

- Fraud in securing employment
- Incompetency
- Inefficiency
- Unauthorized absences
- Repeated absence or tardiness or improper use of leave
- Neglect of duty
- Insubordination or willful misconduct
- Dishonesty
- Assuming duties while under the influence of controlled substances or intoxicants; or possession of use of intoxicants or controlled substances during working hours
- Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor, the circumstances of which are substantially related to the duties performed
- Negligence or willful damage to property
- Discourteous treatment of the public or fellow employees
- Failure to obtain and maintain a current license or certification as required by law or employer
- Failure to maintain effective working relationships with other employees or the public
- Sexual or other unlawful harassment
- Workplace violence
- Violation of any lawful order, directive, policy, or work rule

The offenses listed above are not intended to be all-inclusive, and discipline or discharge may occur for any other reason depending upon the seriousness of the offense and the particular circumstances involved.

<u>Documentation</u>: All discipline shall be documented with a copy provided to the employee and a copy placed in the employee's personnel file.

Corrective action plans may be used in certain instances at the discretion of the administrator or supervisor.

#### **CONFLICT OF INTEREST**

Employees may not use their public position or influence to gain unlawful benefits, advantages or privileges for themselves, for members of their immediate families, or for any other persons.

Persons and businesses with whom or with which an employee has significant fiduciary relationships may not enter into any contract with the District which is to be paid in whole or in part out of District funds unless the contract has been awarded through public notice, competitive bidding or any other process as provided for by law and is otherwise permitted by law.

No employee shall solicit, receive or agree to receive any compensation, gift, reward, gratuity or anything of value from any source except the District for any matter or proceeding connected with or related to the duties of the employee, unless otherwise provided by law. Gifts of nominal value for holidays or "thank you" gifts at the end of a school year are excepted. Compensation, gifts, rewards or gratuities that cannot practically be returned shall immediately be turned over by the employee to the office. All such compensation, gifts, awards or gratuities shall be considered District funds or District property.

Honoraria or expenses paid for papers, talks, demonstrations or appearances made by employees on their own time and not directly related to their employment by the District shall not be prohibited unless a conflict of interest exists.

The District recognizes that the substantial and continuous conflicting interests between District staff and private business representatives doing business with the District can often result in offers of something of value, i.e., meals, refreshments, transportation, etc. Employees shall decline such offers to avoid the interpretation that their official judgment or behavior may be influenced.

This prohibition does not include the acceptance of loans from banks or other financial institutions on customary terms of finance for personal use such as home mortgage loans or the acceptance of unsolicited advertising or promotional material such as pens and calendars, or the acceptance of an award for meritorious public or personal contributions or achievements.

#### **GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

The purpose of this Section is to provide for the exclusive internal method for resolving grievances concerning discipline, termination and workplace safety. A determined effort shall be made to settle any grievance at the lowest possible level in the grievance procedure.

#### **Definitions**

<u>Grievance</u>: A "grievance" is defined as any complaint that arises concerning discipline, termination or workplace safety.

Grievant: A "grievant" may be any employee or group of employees.

<u>Day</u>: The term "days" as used in this Section shall mean regularly scheduled workdays, unless otherwise indicated.

<u>Discipline</u>: Discipline is defined as a suspension [unpaid or paid], or a written reprimand. <u>Termination</u>: Termination is defined as an involuntary discharge involving the dismissal of an employee, usually for some infraction of the rules or policies of the District, abandonment of the position, incompetence or other reason deemed sufficient by the Board and/or its designee. Termination results in involuntary separation and with prejudice to the employee. A termination will result in the loss of length of service and other employment benefits. For the purposes of this document, "termination" shall not include voluntary retirement, voluntary resignation or a nonrenewal of contract under § 118.22, Wis. Stats, § 118.24, Wis. Stats. or a non-reappointment of an extra-curricular assignment.

<u>Workplace safety</u>: A grievance over workplace safety may be filed only if the safety of at least one employee is involved; it's filed by the affected employee(s); the individual(s) filing the grievance proposes a specific remedy, and the issue and proposed remedy are under the reasonable control of the District.

#### **Time Limits**

The time limits set forth in this Section shall be considered as substantive, and failure of the grievant to file and process the grievance within the time limits set forth in this Section shall be deemed a waiver and a settlement of the grievance. The number of days indicated at each level should be considered a maximum. The time limits specified may, however, be extended by the mutual consent of the District and the grievant. The parties may, through mutual consent, agree to start the grievance at a higher step if the grievance involves termination and is initially filed in a timely manner pursuant to the timelines set forth below.

#### **Grievance Processing Procedure**

Grievances shall be processed in accordance with the following procedure:

Step One - Informal Resolution: An earnest effort shall first be made to settle the matter informally between the employee and the immediate supervisor. A grievance may be initiated through an informal meeting and discussion with the immediate supervisor, the employee and the employee's designated representative. The informal meeting and discussion shall occur within thirty (30) days after the facts upon which the grievance is based first occurred. The immediate supervisor will give an answer to the grievance. The grievant(s) shall be required to state the purpose of the discussions and event(s) upon which the discussions are based. The immediate supervisor shall notify the grievant and (if applicable and appropriate) the representative of his/her answer within ten (10) days. If the matter cannot be resolved or if no answer is provided in the above timeframe, the grievant(s) may file a written grievance.

**Step Two - Written Grievance**: If the grievance is not resolved at Step One, the grievant shall file a written grievance with the immediate supervisor within ten (10) days after the earlier of the following: (1) receipt of the Step One response; or (2) the District's deadline for providing a Step One response (if no response is provided). The written grievance shall include the facts upon which the grievance is based, the issues involved, the Handbook provision alleged to be violated and the relief sought. The grievance shall be signed and dated by the grievant. The immediate

supervisor shall respond to the grievance in writing within ten (10) days. However, if there is an ongoing investigation related to the subject matter of the grievance, the immediate supervisor shall have until ten days after completion of the investigation to respond to the grievance. If the matter cannot be resolved or if no answer is provided in the above timeframe, the grievant(s) may file an appeal to the District Administrator.

If the grievant's immediate supervisor is the District Administrator, the grievant shall skip Step Three and proceed directly to Step Four if he/she is not satisfied with response of his/her immediate supervisor at Step Two (or if no answer is provided in the above timeframe).

Step Three - Appeal to District Administrator: If the grievance is not resolved at Step Two, the grievant may appeal the written grievance to the District Administrator within ten (10) days after the response at Step Two or if no response is provided within ten (10) days of the deadline for the response. The District Administrator shall meet with the grievant(s) and/or the employee's designated representative and the principal or immediate supervisor within ten (10) days after receiving the written grievance. The District Administrator shall respond to the written grievance within ten (10) days of the meeting or at a later date as determined by the District Administrator if further investigation is warranted. The District Administrator shall indicate in writing the disposition of the grievance and forward it to the grievant and (if applicable and appropriate) the grievant's representative. If the matter cannot be resolved or if no answer is provided in the above timeframe, the grievant(s) may file an appeal to the impartial hearing officer.

**Step Four - Appeal to Impartial Hearing Officer**: If the grievance is not resolved in Step Three, the employee must notify the District Administrator, within ten (10) days after receipt of the District Administrator's answer or if no response is provided within ten (10) days of the deadline for the response, if he or she intends to process the grievance to an impartial hearing officer.

This step of the process is available only if the alleged violation of District policy or Employee Handbook involves discipline, termination, or workplace safety.

If there is a dispute over the timeliness or the ability to use the grievance procedure on the issue, the Administration shall have the discretion to bifurcate the hearing for the purpose of deciding those issues (i.e. address whether the grievance was filed in a timely manner before hearing the merits of the grievance or address whether the content of the grievance is properly before the impartial hearing officer).

<u>Step Five – Appeal to Board of Education</u>: If the grievance is not resolved at Step Four, the grievance may be appealed to the School Board within ten (10) days after the decision at the prior step. Either the administration or the grievant may appeal an impartial hearing officer's decision to the Board. The Board's decision is final and may not be appealed. All Board actions throughout this process shall comply with requirements of Wisconsin's Open Meetings Law.

The Board shall meet with the parties to review the evidence and hear testimony relating to the grievance. At the hearing, each party may cross-examine any witness of the other party. If either

party presents an exhibit that was not presented at a prior step of the grievance process, the exhibit must be provided to the other party at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the hearing.

#### **Grievant's Right to Representation**

Any grievant may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by a representative(s) of his/her own choosing.

#### **Consolidation of Grievances**

Grievances of the same type, and with similar fact situations, may be consolidated at the discretion of the Administration.

#### **Group Grievances**

Group grievances involve more than one employee and any of the following: More than one work site; More than one supervisor; or

An administrator other than the immediate supervisor

Such grievances may be initially filed at Step Three; however, they shall follow the initial timelines for filing the grievance at steps One and Two above.

## **JOB TRANSFERS & PROMOTIONS**

To permit temporary and permanent job transfers and promotions based on operational needs and based on the employee's relative ability, experience and other qualifications as determined by the Employer. Such transfers and promotions shall not be made arbitrarily or capriciously.

<u>Temporary Assignments</u>: Temporary assignments will normally not exceed sixty (60) calendar days and employees will normally receive their regular rate of pay for the time spent in temporary assignment.

## **JOB VACANCIES & POSTING**

After the district has had the opportunity to exercise its right to transfer existing employees, vacancies or new positions will typically be posted for a minimum of five days if reasonable and appropriate to do so. The Employer retains the right to determine whether and when to recruit outside applicants.

<u>Interview</u>: In most cases, employees who meet minimum qualifications and express written interest will be given the opportunity to interview for the opening. All employees who interview for a position will be notified of selection outcome.

#### **LAYOFF & RECALL**

The District retains the right to lay off employees, in whole or in part, and to retain those employees who are most qualified to perform the available work, regardless of their previous length of employment.

The needs of the District shall be the prime consideration used in the District's determination of which employees shall be laid off. The rehiring of employees that have been laid off, shall be determined by the District based on its need for the most qualified person to perform the available work.

## PERFORMANCE REVIEWS/ EVALUATION

The primary purpose of evaluation is to provide continuous improvement in the quality of service to the community/students/staff of the District.

The District will orient all new employees regarding evaluation procedures and instruments. If an instrument is changed, all affected employees will be reoriented. The frequency of evaluations shall be established at the discretion of the board. Licensed staff shall receive a written evaluation at the end of their first year of employment and at least every third year thereafter to comply with Wisconsin Administrative Code PI 8.01 (2) (q) 1.

The employee shall receive a copy of his or her evaluation. The employee will be expected to sign his or her evaluation but only to acknowledge receipt of the same. The employee may respond in writing with his or her comments attached to the completed evaluation.

#### PERSONNEL FILES

Reasonable access to personnel records will be authorized in accordance with public records laws and regulations. Any/all personal medical information will be secured in an area separate from the personnel record, with strictly controlled and limited access, in order to protect confidentiality.

Employees, and other authorized viewers of records, shall have the authority to review and copy, but not remove or alter, personnel records. If an employee disagrees with any information in his/her personnel file, the employee may submit a written statement explaining his/her position, which shall be included in the file.

#### **PERSONNEL - STUDENT RELATIONS**

All District personnel will recognize and respect the rights of students, as established by local, state, and federal law. Employees shall, at all times, maintain a professional relationship and exhibit a professional demeanor in their interactions with students. Further, employees shall refrain from engaging in any actions or conduct of a sexual nature (verbal or physical) directed toward a student, including, but not limited to, sexual advances, activities involving sexual innuendo, or requests for sexual favors or sexually explicit language or conversation. Employees shall not form inappropriate social or romantic relationships with students, regardless of whether or not the student is 18 years old. Employees shall not use profane or obscene language or gestures in the workplace.

#### SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

Separation from employment includes, but is not limited to, resignation, retirement, reduction in workforce, failure to return from approved leave, or discharge from employment. Such employment separations may be voluntary or involuntary.

If you decide to voluntarily terminate your employment with the District, we request that you give at least two weeks advance notice so that any necessary replacement employees can be recruited or otherwise assigned.

Upon any separation from employment, compensation and benefits which you have earned and accrued will be credited to you pursuant to law. Your last day worked will in most cases be considered your last day of employment.

The District reserves the right to determine the last day of employment.

Employees leaving employment must return materials, equipment and keys on or before their last day of work.

#### WORKPLACE PROTECTIONS AND WORKPLACE SAFETY

#### DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT & RETALIATION-FREE WORK PLACE

It is the policy of the Wonewoc-Union Center School District to maintain a safe workplace environment that is free from discrimination, harassment and retaliation. Every employee has a personal responsibility to help maintain a safe and healthful workplace environment. Under

federal and state fair employment laws, members of protected classes are shielded from unlawful discrimination in employment. Workplace harassment and discrimination whether engaged in by employees, supervisors or members of the public, will not be tolerated and will subject offenders to disciplinary action or discharge from employment. Retaliatory acts taken against employees for reporting workplace safety issues, harassment or discrimination are prohibited and will subject the offender to disciplinary action or discharge from employment.

Responsibility to Report: It is the responsibility of each and every employee to immediately report to management any and all health and safety issues, discriminatory, harassing or retaliatory conduct which may relate to the work environment whether it occurs on or off the job. Such conduct includes conduct by employees toward other employees, by employees toward students and by members of the public toward employees, which relates to their work.

<u>Definition of Protected Class:</u> The district is an equal opportunity employer. State and federal law prohibits discrimination and harassment based on any protected class including, but not limited to, age, race, color, creed, disability, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, arrest record, conviction record, marital status, sexual orientation, genetic testing, membership in the national guard, state defense force or any other reserve component of the military forces, for use or non-use of lawful products off the employer's premises during non-working hours.

Definition of Harassment and Acts of Discrimination: Harassment and acts of discrimination to be reported by employees can include:

- A. Unsolicited and repeated derogatory epithets, derogatory statements or gestures made to a person because of his/her protected status.
- B. Any attempt to penalize or punish a person because of his/her protected status.
- C. Creating an offensive and hostile working environment for a person because of his/her protected status, including sexual harassment.

Reports and allegations of workplace harassment and/or discrimination will be subject to investigation by management as soon as reasonably possible. If an employee is found to be responsible for harassment or other discriminatory conduct, then appropriate disciplinary action may be taken, up to and including a termination from employment. However, such action cannot be taken if management is not first made aware of the complaint.

An employee who has a harassment, discrimination or retaliation complaint should immediately report it to their supervisor. The report may be made verbally or in writing. The allegations should provide sufficient information and detail so that the supervisor can thoroughly investigate the complaint. If the supervisor is the object of the complaint, then the employee should report directly to district administrator.

Upon receiving an employee report of harassment, discrimination or retaliation, the supervisor will take appropriate steps to investigate the complainant's allegations. Such reports shall be kept confidential to the maximum extent possible. An investigation may include interviewing other employees, speaking with the complainant, interviewing members of the public and

reviewing documents such as e-mails, letters or memos. Based upon the investigation's outcome, management will take appropriate action to resolve the complaint. A resolution may or may not result in disciplinary action being taken by the employer.

<u>Definition of Workplace Safety</u>: Any unsafe practice or condition, affecting persons, property or equipment, must be repotted immediately to their supervisor. Should a hazardous situation exist, safety concerns always take precedence over continuing operations. The safety of at least one employee is involved and is filed by the affected employee(s); the individual(s) proposes a specific remedy, and the issue and proposed remedy are under the reasonable control of the District.

#### HARASSMENT AND BULLYING

A. <u>Policy Statement</u>: The District is committed to providing fair and equal employment opportunities and to providing a professional work and student learning environment free of all forms of harassment and bullying.

Harassment: The District shall not tolerate harassment based on any personal characteristic described above in above stated discrimination & retaliation-free work place rules. Harassment and other unacceptable activities that could alter conditions of employment, or form a basis for personnel decisions, or interfere with employee's work performance are specifically prohibited. Sexual harassment, whether committed by supervisory or non-supervisory personnel, is unlawful and also specifically prohibited. In addition, the District shall not tolerate acts of non-employees (volunteers, vendors, visitors, etc.) that have the effect of harassing District employees in the workplace. Harassment can occur as a result of a single incident or a pattern of behavior where the purpose or effect of such behavior is to create an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment. Harassment encompasses a broad range of physical and verbal behavior that can include, but is not limited to, the following:

- 1. Unwelcome sexual advances, comments or innuendos;
- 2. Physical or verbal abuse;
- 3. Jokes, insults or slurs based on any personal characteristic (Such comments are unacceptable whether or not the individual within the protected class is present in the workplace to overhear them and whether or not a member of a class professes to tolerate such remarks);
- 4. Taunting based on any personal characteristic described above in above stated discrimination & retaliation-free work place rules.; and/or
- 5. Requests for sexual favors used as a condition of employment or affecting any personnel decisions such as hiring, promotion, compensation, etc.

<u>Bullying</u>: is defined as systematic or repeated infliction (or attempted or threatened infliction) of physical harm or psychological/emotional distress on one or more students, staff, or other persons. It involves purposeful or intentional written, spoken, nonverbal, or physical behavior, including but not limited to any threatening, intimidating, insulting, degrading, or dehumanizing conduct, gesture, or communication that has the effect of doing any of the following:

- 1. Substantially interfering with any employee's work or a student's education;
- 2. Substantially interfering with a person's ability to participate in or benefit from any school activity or program;
- 3. Endangering the health, safety, or property of the target(s) of the behavior;
- 4. Creating a threatening, intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment within any District school, activity, or program; or
- 5. Substantially disrupting the orderly operation of the school.

"Cyber-bullying" is defined as bullying that involves the use of digital technologies, including but not limited to, e-mail, cell phones, text messages, instant messages, chat rooms, and social media (e.g., Twitter<sup>TM</sup> or Facebook<sup>TM</sup>). Cyber-bullying is prohibited and treated the same as all other types of bullying.

Bullying is deliberate/purposeful conduct, but intent/purpose may properly be inferred from the totality of the circumstances (e.g., where the behavior is persistent/repeated or where the responsible party reasonably should have been able to foresee the consequences of his/her actions and the manner in which his/her conduct would be likely to be perceived by the target(s) of the conduct).

Bullying can involve direct interaction between the aggressor-bully and the target(s), or it can be indirect (such as orchestrating others to engage in acts of bullying; facilitating bullying conduct by others; etc.).

Not all behaviors that (1) hurt another person's feelings; (2) are a manifestation of an interpersonal conflict; or (3) are in some way unkind amount to acts of bullying. However, such negative behaviors are still a legitimate subject of concern and regulation within the school environment. Further, it shall be a goal of the District's workplace and educational programs to help staff, students and others recognize and acknowledge that even one-time instances of, for example, name calling, negative teasing, put-downs, or excluding others (when inclusion was readily possible) are inappropriate and problematic for a number of reasons.

D. <u>Employee Responsibility</u>: All employees are responsible for ensuring that harassment and bullying do not occur. The District intends to comply with both the letter and spirit of the law in making certain that harassment and bullying do not exist in its policies, regulations and operations. Anyone who believes that he or she has been the subject of harassment or bullying or has knowledge of violations of this policy shall report the matter in accordance with established complaint procedures. All reports regarding employee harassment or bullying shall be taken seriously, treated fairly and promptly and thoroughly investigated. Individual privacy shall be

protected to the extent possible. There shall be no retaliation against any person who files a complaint under this policy. The District shall take appropriate and necessary action to eliminate employee harassment and bullying. Actions that are determined to be harassment or bullying shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

All employees have a duty to report incidents of alleged harassment or bullying to their immediate supervisor or designated equal employment officer. Employees who fail to report incidents of alleged harassment or bullying may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. In addition, supervisory employees who fail to respond to harassment or bullying complaints or to act on their knowledge of violation of this policy will likewise be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

#### **FIREARMS**

<u>Weapons Prohibition</u>: Firearms and dangerous weapons are prohibited on all property of the District. The prohibition includes firearms in vehicles on school property. Firearms and dangerous weapons have the definitions set forth in the following statutory provisions: WIS. STAT. §§ 120.13(1), 948.60, 948.605, 948.61.

This prohibition does not apply where state law prohibits a school district from restricting any individual's right to possess a firearm or other weapon in a location covered by this policy (e.g., law enforcement officers possessing a firearm or other weapon on school grounds in the line of duty).

#### DRUG AND ALCOHOL PROHIBITIONS

No employee shall report to work or be under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, and unauthorized use of prescription or over-the-counter medication during working hours. This policy includes any paid or unpaid lunch periods as well as training sessions and the working hours of conferences. The sale, possession, transfer or purchase of above mentioned drugs while in the course and scope of employment is also prohibited.

The purpose of this policy is to: a) establish and maintain a safe and healthy work environment, b) reduce absenteeism and tardiness, and c) improve job performance.

<u>Drug & Alcohol Testing</u>: The Employer may conduct drug & alcohol testing based on reasonable suspicion that the employee under the influence of alcohol or illegal/unauthorized drugs and may conduct testing for employees in testing-designated positions. Any such testing will be done in accordance with established procedures.

## WORK RULES AND RULES OF CONDUCT

These work rules constitute the general work rules applicable to employees of the Potosi School District. The application and implementation of these rules may vary between individuals or work units due to the nature of the work or as specific circumstances require. Likewise, these work rules do not constitute the entire list of potential actions or violations for which employees may be disciplined. State and federal statutes and regulations also govern the workplace. Violations of these rules will also result in appropriate disciplinary action.

#### **INCIDENTS, ACCIDENTS AND INJURIES**

Any employee involved in an incident, accident or injury, including property-damage only accidents or incidents, irrespective of fault, during working hours or while using any District-owned machinery, vehicle or other property, shall report the incident, accident or injury to the District Office within 24 hours (excluding weekends and holidays) of the occurrence of the incident, accident or injury.

#### WORK STOPPAGE

Employees of the District shall not engage in, condone, assist or support any strike, slowdown, or sanction, or withhold in full or in part any services to the District. In the event of a violation of this Section, the District may take whatever disciplinary action it deems appropriate up to and including discharge.

#### ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

Employees are expected to use their computers in a professional and business-like manner. While the District encourages and supports employee use of computer systems as a means of improving productivity, certain restrictions are necessary to avoid improprieties, ensure that established standards are met, and maintain appropriate security of computerized data.

Computers, computer files, any e-mail system, and software furnished to employees are District property intended for business use. Employees should not use a password, access a file, or retrieve any stored communication without authorization. To ensure compliance with this policy, computer and e-mail usage may be monitored.

Employees are required to abide by the federal copyright laws and to abide by all licensing agreements.

The district will require a signed District Acceptable Use Agreement with all employees as a

#### **GENERAL RULES OF CONDUCT**

#### The following conduct is prohibited:

- (1) Insubordination, including disobedience, failure or refusal to follow written or oral instruction of supervisory authority, or to carry out work assignments.
- (2) Neglecting job duties or responsibilities.
- (3) Loafing, loitering, sleeping or engaging in unauthorized personal business or visiting.
- (4) Disclosure of confidential information and records.
- (5) Falsifying records or giving false information to other agencies or private organizations or to employees responsible for record keeping.
- (6) Failure to observe all safety rules and practices, including the use of protective equipment and clothing or the unsafe operation of vehicles and equipment.
- (7) Failure to report accidents or injuries including traffic accidents.
- (8) Failure to report promptly at the starting time of a work day or shift or leaving before the scheduled quitting time of a work day or shift or failure to notify the proper authority of impending absence or tardiness.
- (9) Leaving the place of duty during a work day or shift without permission of the immediate supervisor.
- (10) Failure to observe the time limits of lunch or rest periods.
- (11) Abuse or misuse of District property, equipment or materials.
- (12) Stealing, pilfering or unauthorized possession or use of District property, equipment or materials, including, but not limited to, computers, telephones or mail or copy service.
- (13) Threatening, attempting or inflicting bodily harm or injury.
- (14) Threatening, intimidating, interfering with, or using abusive language towards others.
- (15) Horseplay, including practical jokes, pushing, running or throwing objects.
- (16) Failure to observe no smoking regulations.
- (17) Unauthorized possession of weapons.
- (18) Possession of or use of alcoholic beverages or illegal drugs while on District time or

property.

- (19) Reporting for work in an unsafe condition or under the influence of alcoholic beverages or illegal drugs.
- (20) Immoral conduct.
- (21) Selling commercial products or services on District property without authorization.
- (22) Unauthorized solicitation of funds or donations for any purpose.
- (23) Unauthorized distribution of printed matter on District property.
- (24) Unauthorized lending, borrowing or duplication of keys to District vehicles, property or other appurtenances.
- (25) Inappropriate dress or grooming.
- (26) Soliciting or accepting any unauthorized compensation, reward or gift from outside sources for any matter related to the employee's activities as an employee of the District.

#### **CODE OF ETHICS**

<u>Definitions</u>. For purposes of this section, unless otherwise provided below, the definitions found under Wis. Stat. sec. 19.42 shall be used:

<u>Anything of value</u>: Anything which influences or gives the appearance of influencing the manner in which employees perform their work, make decisions or otherwise carry out job duties, for example a gift, favor, service or promise of future employment.

<u>Personal and Private Interest</u>: An interest including, but not limited to, a financial interest, which pertains to a person, firm, corporation, partnership or association whereby such person, firm, corporation, partnership or association would gain a special benefit, privilege, exemption or advantage from the action of the District.

<u>Confidential Information</u>: Information gained under governmental authority or in the course of one's employment with a governmental authority, which is not to be released to the general public because:

- (a) Release of such information is expressly prohibited by statutes; or
  - (b) A formal decision has been made that release of such information would be harmful to the public interest.

<u>District Property</u>: Items including, but not limited to, leased or owned facilities, vehicles, supplies, equipment, stenographic assistance, and duplicating services of any kind where a direct cost to the District may be identified.

#### **CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION**

Employees shall not disclose confidential information gained through their official position, except as authorized or required by law, nor shall they otherwise use such information for their personal gain or benefit. Particular attention and fidelity to student records disclosure is required of all employees in accordance with state and federal law and Board policy.

Employees shall not accept employment or engage in any business or professional activity, which they might reasonably expect, would require them to disclose or act upon the disclosure of confidential information acquired by them because of their official position.

#### USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY FOR PRIVATE PURPOSES

Employees of the District shall not use District property or equipment for their private use or for any other use than that which serves the public interest. The District stresses that employees use common sense and honesty in ensuring that District property, facilities and equipment are not used for personal gain or advantage. This includes, but is not limited to, using District owned stationery, postage, typing or reproduction services for social organizations or groups. With prior approval, the after -hours use of District facilities for public meetings may be appropriate.

#### **CERTIFIED INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF**

#### **WORK DAY**

# Work Day Hours- Full time School Term and Part time School Term (Certified Instructional Staff):

All full-time certified instructional employees will work 7:30 am to 3:30 pm or 7:45 am to 3:45 pm. Other start times may be approved by administration. Administration may call meetings between 7:30 am and 4:00 pm with employees adjusting start and end times on such days.

#### Part-time:

The normal workweek for any part-time employee shall be designated by the Wonewoc-Union Center School District.

The District reserves the right to schedule employees, on an occasional basis, outside the parameters specified in this section when it is deemed necessary to do so.

#### Changes in Schedule:

Should it be necessary in the judgment of the employer to establish daily or weekly work schedules departing from the employee's normal work day or work week, written notice of such change shall be given to the employee affected as far in advance as is reasonably practicable.

#### **Preparation Periods:**

During the regular work day elementary teachers will normally have <u>235</u> minutes per week of preparation time. Middle/high school teachers and teachers working between the elementary and middle/high school will normally have the equivalent of <u>one class period daily.</u>

#### Student Supervision and Attendance at School Events:

Teachers are expected to participate in extra duties, as assigned or directed, which may include, but are not limited to, student supervision, field trips, school events and parent/teacher conferences.

#### LEAVE

#### School Year Employees (Certified Instructional Staff):

Each employee shall be credited with ten (10) leave days per employment year.

#### School Year Part-Time Employees (Certified Instructional Staff):

Each employee shall be credited with one (1) day of leave on a prorated basis (equal to percent of FTE). These will be authorized at the beginning of the employment year.

#### Leave Accumulation

Leave for employees will accumulate for full-time and part-time employees to a maximum of 90 days.

1) When Certified Instructional Staff employee separates from the district, for reasons other than by termination or mid-contract resignations, the Certified Instructional Staff

- employee will be entitled to a cash pay-out of accumulated leave time at a rate of \$40 per day to a maximum of ninety (90) days for a maximum total of \$3,600. Accumulated leave may only be used for the employee's personal illness or under rules pursuant to FMLA rules and regulations.
- 2) Staff members who have accumulated 90 days will be compensated for unused leave days over 90 days at a rate of \$40 per day by June 30 of the current school year.

#### VOLUNTARY EARLY RETIREMENT POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

Early retirement Post Employment benefits shall be available to teachers who qualify for a monthly WRS benefit according to WRS rules and who resign from their regular full-time teaching duties.

<u>Eligibility</u>: Teachers must have taught 15 years in the Wonewoc-Center School District. The teacher must be a minimum 55 years old.

<u>Notice</u>: Teachers who plan to take early retirement separate shall notify the District of their intent to do so by March 30 of the current school year so at least ninety (90) days prior to their expected date of retirement.

<u>Limitations</u>: Teachers shall only be permitted to retire under this policy if they qualify and apply for a monthly benefit prior to the commencement of the next regular school year.

The Board shall contribute \$6666.67 per year for six (6) years for a total of \$40,000 to the District established Health Retirement Account (HRA). The annual contribution will be deposited in or about July following retirement. Once the benefit money has been deposited into the personal HRA, the money is the employee's. The money in the HRA will go to heirs, upon death, and any remaining payments to the account are null and void.

The HRA is administered by Mid-America. The money can be used for insurance premiums and all qualifying health related costs. (Examples: contacts, glasses, dental expenses, etc.)

Additional plan information is located in the Human Resources-Business Manager's office. The board retains the right to change or eliminate these benefits at any time.

#### COLLEGE CREDIT REIMBURSEMENT

All college credits must be <u>pre-approved</u> by the district administrator for credit reimbursement. Credits meeting any one of the following criteria, or that fall within a teacher's area of certification, may be approved for reimbursement:

- 1. Credits in an advanced educational degree program of an accredited college or university which are related to a position held or expected to be held in the district,
- 2. Graduate credits taken in an area of study related to the teacher's teaching assignments and/or in the field of education,
- 3. Undergraduate credits taken in an area of study related to the teacher's teaching assignment

The district administrator, at his or her sole discretion, may also pre-approve credit reimbursement for courses taken to improve coaching performance. Teachers who resign will be required to reimburse the district for credits paid by the district for all courses taken during the summer following their last year of teaching in the District. Approved courses will be reimbursed at the rate of \$110 per undergraduate credit or \$200 per credit for graduate credit for a maximum of six (6) credits per year. Reimbursement will be made by separate check upon receipt of transcript or other evidence of course completion.

#### EXTENDED DAY COMPENSATION

In the event a teacher is assigned and accepts to cover an assignment to which prohibits receiving the allotted amount of preparation time, the District will pay according to the following formula: (IEP meetings must be required to attend.)

45 minutes or less \$12.00 46 minutes or more \$20.00

(Attendance at school assemblies does not qualify for compensatory time off or pay.)

An employee may choose to take compensatory time off or will receive compensatory pay as determined by the administration. An agreement with the employee to accept compensatory time off must be on file in the District office. If an employee chooses to receive compensatory pay, he or she must add the time to his or her extra-curricular pay sheet and submit it for supervisory and Human Resource Department or Business Manager approval. If an employee chooses compensatory time off, he or she must email notice to the Office Manager or the person who handles his or her leave. Employees must include: (1) the date the work was performed; (2) the name of the person worked for; (3) amount of time worked; and the name of the supervisor who authorized the work. The scheduling of such compensatory time shall be done by the employee's immediate supervisor. Compensatory time earned after May 1, and through the summer, may be redeemed from October 1 through the end of the first semester. The usage of the compensatory time must be agreed upon with the immediate supervisor.

Missed Prep \$12.00 per hour and Documentation must be placed on the Extra Curricular pay sheet. This must be signed by your supervisor and submitted to the Human Resource Department or Business Manager. (Excluded from missed prep time or any extra pay is the school assemblies.)

- 1) Detention Coverage after hours starts at 3:30 3:20 p.m. \$12.00 per hour.
- 2) Curriculum-Data-and similar as approved by the administration is compensated at \$20.00 per hour.
- 3) Conference attendance required by administration on non-contract time is compensated at \$20 per hour.

#### RESIGNATION

See individual teaching contract for this information.

Employees leaving employment must return materials, equipment and keys on or before their last day of work.

#### SUPPORT STAFF

The District Administrator is solely responsible for implementing any or all disciplinary measures, including but not limited to suspension and/or dismissal from employment (at-will.) Such discipline or termination shall be subject to the grievance procedure provisions of this handbook.

#### WORK DAY HOURS

Each employee should be fully aware of the work day hours for his or her position including lunch and other breaks. Questions may be raised with the immediate supervisor/director or the District Administrator of schools to guarantee no misunderstandings.

All extra hours worked must have prior written approval by the employee's immediate supervisor/director.

Work time may not be accrued by starting early or staying late (for example using TrueTime) unless scheduled through the immediate supervisor or District Administrator.

Elementary EC-12 Secretary	: 12 months	7:30-4:00	8 hrs per day
Registrar/ EC-12 Secretary:	10 months	8:00-4:30	8 hrs per day
Clerical Aide	School year	8:00 -4:30	8 hrs per day
Classroom Aide:	School year	7:30-3:30	7.5 hrs per day
Technology Aide:	School year	flexible	4 hrs per day
Library Aide:	School Year	flexible	4 hrs per day
Custodian 1:	12 months	12:30pm to 9:00pm	8 hrs per day
Custodian 2:	12 months	3:30pm to 12:00mid	8 hrs per day
Cook 1:	School Year	7:00-1:00	6 hrs per day
Cook 2:	School Year	8:30-2:30	6 hrs per day

<sup>\*\*\*</sup>The District reserves the right to schedule employees, on an occasional basis, outside the parameters specified in this section when it is deemed necessary to do so.

Working hours, break(s) and lunch periods will be determined by the immediate Supervisor.

An employee, who works 4 consecutive hours, will be provided one (1) ten (10) minute paid break. Break time will be determined by the immediate supervisor.

Employees who work more than six (6) hours per day are provided a one-half (1/2) hour lunch break as close to the middle of the work shift as reasonable scheduling permits. Lunch times will be determined by the immediate supervisor. No compensation will be received for lunch breaks.

The normal workweek for any part-time employee shall be designated by the Wonewoc-Union Center School District.

## SUMMER HELP

Employees who are hired to work during the summer months when school is not in session shall be designated by the Wonewoc-Union Center School District. These hours will be handled outside of the regular contract.

All extra hours worked must have prior written approval by the employee's immediate supervisor/director.

With prior approval, all hours actually worked over forty (40) hours per week, shall be paid at time and one-half (1-1/2) of the employee's regular straight time hourly rate of pay. For purposes of determining the number of hours an employee has worked in any given week, paid time off (sick leave, personal leave, vacation, holiday, etc.) shall not be included nor counted against the 40-hour workweek for overtime purposes.

Compensatory time at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the number of overtime hours actually earned may be used in lieu of overtime payment. An agreement with the employee to accept compensatory time off must be on file in the District office. The scheduling of such compensatory time shall be done by the employee's immediate supervisor. Compensatory time earned after May 1, and through the summer, may be redeemed from October 1 through the end of the first semester. The usage of the compensatory time must be agreed upon with the immediate supervisor.

The Employer reserves the right to schedule overtime work as required in a manner most advantageous to the employer and consistent with the requirements of the school district in the public interest. All overtime shall be scheduled and distributed as equally as practicable among employees who, during the regular working hours, customarily perform the work required.

## SCHOOL CANCELLATIONS

School year employees (non-contracted), such as an aide or cook, will not be paid for days when school is closed due to inclement weather or other emergencies as determined by the District Administrator. They may use leave if available; otherwise, it is unpaid.

Twelve-month employees are expected to come to work when school is called off for students. If a twelve-month employee elects to not report to work, he/she may be subject to a wage deduction, or loss of vacation or leave time as selected by the employee. If the employee elects to come in late or leave early, that portion of the day will be deducted from his/her wages, vacation or leave time.

Maintenance and custodial staff are expected to come to work when school is called off for students.

If the District Administrator sends a school year employee or twelve-month employee home, because of inclement weather or other emergency, or school is delayed, that portion of the work day covered by the directive will be deducted from his/her wages or unused vacation time or leave time.

The school cancellation and use of leave, vacation or wages shall be at the discretion of the District Administrator.

#### LEAVE

#### Full Year Support Staff Employees:

Each employee shall be credited with twelve (12) leave days per employment year.

## School Year Support Staff Employees:

Each employee shall be credited with ten (10) leave days per employment year.

<u>School Year Part-Time Support Staff Employees</u>: Each employee shall be credited with one (1) day of leave on a prorated basis (equal to percent of FTE). These will be authorized at the beginning of the employment year.

### Leave Accumulation

Leave for employees will accumulate for full-time and part-time employees to a maximum of 90 days.

- 1) When a school year Support Staff employee separates from the district, for reasons other than by termination or mid-school year resignations, the Support Staff employee will be entitled to a cash pay-out of accumulated leave time at a rate of \$40 per day to a maximum of ninety (90) days for a maximum total of \$3,600.
- 2) When a full year Support Staff employee separates from the district, after having provided 2-weeks notice, the Support Staff employee will be entitled to a cash pay-out of accumulated leave time at a rate of \$40 per day to a maximum of ninety (90) days for a maximum total of \$3,600.
- 3) Staff members who have accumulated 90 days will be compensated for additional unused leave days at a rate of \$40 per day by June 30 of the current school year.

Accumulated leave may only be used for the employee's personal illness or under rules pursuant to FMLA rules and regulations.

#### Leave Usage

- 1) Leave of 3 days duration or longer must be approved in advance by the administration.
- 2) Return from absence due to illness of 3 days duration or longer must be accompanied by a physician's approval to return to duty.

## **HOLIDAYS**

12 month Support Staff employees are entitled to the following paid holidays:

New Year's Eve Day

New Year's Day

Good Friday

Easter Monday

Memorial Day

Fourth of July

Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day

Friday after Thanksgiving Day

December 24

Christmas Day

School Year Support Staff employees are entitled to the following paid holidays:

Memorial Day

Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day

Christmas Day

Whenever a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the District Administrator will designate another day as a non-working day. In order to be eligible for holiday pay, an employee must be on the active payroll of the District and must have worked his/her full regularly scheduled workday before and after the holiday, unless excused by the Board for a paid leave. Employees will be compensated for paid holidays at their normal daily rate.

An employee who is called in to work on a holiday shall receive one and one-half times his/her regular straight-time hourly rate of pay for all hours worked.

If a holiday(s) falls internally within a vacation period of the employee, the employee will be paid for the holiday(s), but the holiday(s) will not be counted as used vacation time.

## **VACATION**

Support staff personnel employed twelve (12) months and working more than four hours per day receive the vacation benefits as follows: (If less than full time, vacation corresponds to regular work hours for example, 4 hours per day receives 5 days of 4 hours.)

After a 90-day probationary period—5 days

After 2 years—10 days

After 5 years—earn additional vacation day accumulative to a total of 15 days after 10 years.

Vacation days are determined by years of employment based on the employee's date of hire.

Employees shall be granted their vacation days for the year effective on the day immediately following the end of the initial probationary period and on July 1st thereafter.

Vacation days are to be used within 12 months or be forfeited. For example, vacation days are granted on 7/1/12 and shall be used by 6/30/13.

Vacation days may be used for leave if the employee's leave has been exhausted.

Dates for use of vacation days are subject to approval by the employee's supervisor or the District Administrator. Vacation days may be used up to eight (8) hours of vacation time per day off in one hour increments.

Vacation requests must be given 2 days in advance of the date of the vacation.

#### VOLUNTARY EARLY RETIREMENT POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

Early retirement Post employment benefits shall be available to support staff who qualifies for a monthly WRS benefit according to WRS rules and who resigns from their regular full-time duties.

<u>Eligibility</u>: Support staff must have worked 15 years in the Wonewoc-Union Center School District. The employee must be a minimum 55 years old.

<u>Notice</u>: Any support staff who plan to separate take early retirement shall notify the District of their intent to do so at least ninety (90) days prior to their expected date of retirement separation.

<u>Limitations</u>: Support staff shall only be permitted to retire under this policy if they qualify and apply for a monthly benefit prior to the commencement of the next regular school year.

The Board shall contribute \$5,000 per year for three (3) years for a total of \$15,000 to the District established Health Retirement Account (HRA). The annual contribution will be deposited in or about July following retirement. Once the benefit money has been deposited into the personal HRA, the money is the employee's. The money in the HRA will go to heirs, upon death, and any remaining payments to the account are null and void.

The HRA is administered by Mid-America. The money can be used for insurance premiums and all qualifying health related costs. (Examples: contacts, glasses, dental expenses, etc.)

Additional plan information is located in the Human Resources-Business Manager's office. The board retains the right to change or eliminate these benefits at any time.

## APPENDIX A

Additional payment schedule for coaching will be as follows:

Head Football Coach	\$2,236
First Assistant Coach, Football	1,428
Second Assistant Coach, Football	1,428
Junior High Football Coach I	807
Junior High Football Coach 2	807
Head Volleyball Coach	2,236
J.V. Volleyball Coach	1,428
C Squad Team Coach	1,428
Junior High Volleyball Coach 1	807
Junior High Volleyball Coach 2	807
Head Basketball Coach- boys & girls	2,422
Assistant Basketball-boys & girls	1,521
C Squad Team Coach-boys & girls	1,521
7th Grade Basketball-boys & girls	807
8th Grade Basketball-boys & girls	807
7 <sup>th</sup> & 8 <sup>th</sup> Grade Track- boys & girls	700
Head Track Coach- boys & girls	1,739
Head Baseball Coach	1,739
Head Softball Coach	1,739

## Additional payment for extra duties will be as follows:

Seventh Grade Advisor 1	\$337
Seventh Grade Advisor 2	337
Eighth Grade Advisor 1	337
Eighth Grade Advisor 2	337
Freshman Advisor 1"	337
Freshman Advisor 2	337
Sophomore Advisor 1	337
Sophomore Advisor 2	337
Junior Advisor 1	445
Junior Advisor 2	445
Senior Advisor 1	445
Senior Advisor 2	445
Drama Club	200
Contest Play Director	1,050
Spring Play Director	1,050
Forensics 1	800
Forensics 2	800
Annual Advisor 1	800
Annual Advisor 2	800
Pep Band Director	Stipend per performance
Musical	1,050
Student Council	605
National Honor Society	605
GT Coordinator	\$605 if built into schedule/\$1,

\$605 if built into schedule/\$1,200 if not in schedule \$3,000 if a non-employee

Advisor/Coaching pay may be prorated if unable to complete duties due to unforeseen circumstances.

The following will be paid at the rate of \$25.00 per event/ \$8.00 per hour depending on classification, except for tournaments which will be covered under the WIAA Tournament Payment Schedule:

Football -- Yard Markers, Down Markers, Announcer Ticket Sellers -- all sports Building Monitor -- all sports

## **SAMPLE FORMS**

# Extra Curricular Athletic Payroll Sheet SCHOOL YEAR

Name:							
Coaching:							
	Sport and Position	Amount					
Other Extra-Curric	cular Athletic Duties:						
Date	Duty: (Supervision, Line Judge, Field Markers, etc.)						
	(oupervision, Ellio oudge	, i lora markoro, otor					
Comments:							
	Total Expense:						
	Signature:						
	Approved by Athletic Director	:					

# Extra Duties Payroll Sheet 2011-2012 School Year

Date:	Description of Duties:	Hours:	(V) IEP	(v) Missed Prep	(v) Detention	Hours
	Total:					
Total an	nount of reimbursement	:				
Signatur	re:		Approved by:			

## WONEWOC-CENTER SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR ATTENDANCE AT A CONFERENCE/WORKSHOP

Name and address of agency conducting program:	Name and address where workshop is being held:
Phone number you can be reached at the day of the worksh	пор:
Title of Program:	
Date of Program:	Hours:
General Topic of Program:	
Do you need a sub? Yes No	If yes: All day A.M. P.M.
If other, state what hours a sub is needed	<b>1</b> :
Approximate costs will be:  Registration: Mileage: Other: TOTAL:	Hotel: Preferred method: Hold room using personal credit card - tell them "tax exempt" and you will bring a check at check-in for the amount from your district. Sen Accounts Payable the amount of check needed with documentation and when you need it.
Registration: Have you registered? Yes – attach copy registration	
	Must use credit card Other — please explain:
My objectives and purpose of attending this conference:	
I have not attended a conference this school year.	
I have attended a conference before, Number of	days:
	Date:
Employee Signature Typing in your name will be the signature.	
Approved Not Approved Administr	ator. Date:
	E-Mile:

## Wonewoc-Center School District

101 School Rd Wonewoc, WI 53968 608-464-3165

Employee Name (Please print):
Each payday, all employees in the direct deposit program, will receive an "Advice of Deposit" which contains the same information as a check stub. The employee's net wages are placed directly into the employee's personal bank account or savings.
To assure the correct account will be credited attach a voided check or deposit slip for the account below.
□ New Enrollment □ Change
Financial Institution:
Routing/Transit Number:
Account Number:
Type of Account: ☐ Checking ☐ Savings
☐ Net pay or \$
Direct Deposit Effective Date:
I authorize the School District of Wonewoc-Center School District and the financial institution listed above to deposit my net pay each payday to the account(s) specified. This authority will remain in effect until I have filed a new authorization. I understand I can change my account or financial institution arrangement by filing a new authorization form. I understand it is my responsibility to file a new Direct Deposit Authorization if I should change my bank or account information.
Employee Signature Date Example:
THE MAS ON MARIY AND SERVICE SOOP AND PROPERTY TO A SHOOT SERVICE AND A SHOOT SERVICE
15 15
usbank of the second of the se
(DDDD000000) [23456789D*]
Routing Number Account Number

(http://www.usbank.com/cgi\_w/cfm/personal/products\_and\_services/checking/direct\_deposit\_ps.cfm/WT.mc\_id\_r2947)

You are responsible for answering all questions on the Employee's Work Injury Report accurately and in detail. This will make the processing of your claim both accurate and timely. This completed report should be given to the workers' compensation contact within 24 hours of your work-related injury

## **Employee's Work Injury Report**

	Name					Social Security	y Number				
al	Address					Birth Date			Sex	М	F
Personal	City, State					Zip		Telephone	_		
α.	Married	Single	Numbe	or of Depen	dents			Home/Scho	ool _		
	Family Physic	cian				Telephone Nu	ımber				
ler	Job Title					Employment [	Date				
Employment	Salary/Hourly	Rate				Hours Worked	d Per Day				
Ē	Building Loca	ution				Time Work Da	ay Begins				
	Date of Injury	·				Time of Accid	ent				
	Where in the	facility/job site o	lid this injury	occur?							
	What were yo	ou doing when i	njured?								
so.	How did the i	njury occur?									
njury/IIIness		injury or illness body affected. iate.)									
ı	Any previous	similar injury? I	f yes, explai	n							
	Was this inju	ry witnessed? If	so, by whon	n?							
	Did you lose	time from work?	Yes 🗌	No 🗆		Date(s) misse	d				
	Have you ret	urned?	Yes 🗌	No 🗆		If yes, what wa	as the date	?			
ment	Medical Faci	ity									
Treat	Diagnosis/Ca	re Prescribed									
Contact	You must not	ify the workers'	compensation	on contact,		when you retur	rn to work.	Call ( )	-		
ဝိ	Employee Si	gnature					Da	te			

## WONEWOC-CENTER SCHOOL DISTRICT DISCIPLINARY OFFICE REFERRAL

Student	:						Grade:			Dat	te:	
Time:			Place:					Sta	ff Memb	er:		
Nature	of											
Problem	n:											
			A	CTION	BY S	TAFF BEFO	ORE REFI	ERR	AL:			
	Verbal Wa	urning				Letter to Pare	ents			C	onfere	nce with Student
	Guidance l	Referral	l			Phone Call H	lome			To	eacher/	Student Contract
	Teacher/Pa	arent Co	onf.			Detention		Other				
				ACT	ION	BY ADMIN	ISTRATIO	ON:				
	Conference	e with S	Student			Phone Call H	lome			St	uspensi	ion - Out-of-School
	Conference	e with P	arent			Detention				Sı	uspensi	ion - In School
	Referral to	Guidan	nce/Psych	1		Copy Sent to	Parents			R	eferral	s to Police
COMMENTS												
	Teac	cher's S	Signatur	9		_			School (	Offic	ial's S	ignature

## 2014-2015 EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK SIGNATURE PAGE

I,	, acknowledge receipt of this
Employee Handbook.	-
I am a contracted employee	I am a non-contracted employee
I understand that while the School District of V wholeheartedly in its policies and procedures the Handbook, they are not conditions of e Handbook is simply a means to acquaint me w operations, and provide guidelines in regard to	many of which are set out in mployment. Rather, the Employee with the School District and its
I understand that the School District of Woney to modify, amend, or delete any provisions of time. I will receive copies of any such modifi	the Employee Handbook at any
I understand that this Employee Handbook suphandbooks, and personnel policies that I have the District. I also understand that any subset of this Handbook after I commence my encontained herein.	received or have been advised of by quent revisions to the provisions
I understand that unless I am bound by a written approved by the District, the District follows a that either the employee or the District can terral at any time, with or without notice.	n employment-at-will policy, such
Date:	
Print name:	
Signature:	

Must return this copy to the Human Resource Department or Business Manager